
From: Fink, Lee - OSEC
To: Cochran, Catherine - OC; Mabry, Brian - OSEC; Maloney, Wayne - AMS; Allen, William - AMS; Reuschel, Trevor -

OSEC
Cc: Ricci, Carrie - OGC; Carrington, Karen - OGC; YOUNG, BENJAMIN, JR. - OGC
Subject: RE: Capital Press Inquiry
Date: Thursday, April 28, 2016 11:34:33 AM

Cathy,
 
I understand that you are getting requests from the press about language included in the
appropriations committee report about how FOIA operates with respect to Research and Promotion
Boards.

 

 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------
Lee Fink
Deputy General Counsel
United States Department of Agriculture
Lee.Fink@usda.gov
(202) 205-4725 (office)

(mobile)
 
 
From: Jones, Samuel - AMS 
Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 5:23 PM
To: Cochran, Catherine - OC <Catherine.Cochran.1@oc.usda.gov>; Carrington, Karen - OGC
<KAREN.CARRINGTON@OGC.USDA.GOV>; Mabry, Brian - OSEC <Brian.Mabry@oc.usda.gov>; Sparks,
Gwen - OSEC <Gwen.Sparks@oc.usda.gov>
Cc: Maloney, Wayne - AMS <Wayne.Maloney@ams.usda.gov>; Morris, Erin - AMS
<erin.morris@ams.usda.gov>; Allen, William - AMS <William.Allen@ams.usda.gov>; Bailey, Shayla -
AMS <Shayla.Bailey@ams.usda.gov>; Person, MichelleM - AMS <MichelleM.Person@ams.usda.gov>
Subject: Capital Press Inquiry
 
Good afternoon,
 
Capital Press contacted AMS asking for a comment on the request below to Congress.  Could
you advise on the appropriate response, if any?
 
Thanks for your guidance,
Sam Jones-Ellard
Public Affairs Specialist
USDA | Agricultural Marketing Service

 

(b) (6)

(b)(5) Pre-decisional/Deliberative, (b)(5) ACP

(b)(5) Pre-decisional/Deliberative, (b)(5) ACP
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Follow us on Twitter @USDA_AMS or read our stories on the USDA blog.
 

 
 

From: JOhn O'Connell [mailto:joconnell@capitalpress.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 3:45 PM
To: Person, MichelleM - AMS
Subject: capital press
 

April 11, 2016

Honorable Robert Aderholt, Chairman Subcommittee on
Agriculture, Rural Development,

Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies
Committee on Appropriations

U.S. House of Representatives Washington, DC 20515

Honorable Sam Farr, Ranking Minority Member
Subcommittee on Agriculture, Rural Development,

Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies
Committee on Appropriations

U.S. House of Representatives Washington, DC 20515

Dear Chairman Aderholt and Ranking Member Farr:

The undersigned associations represent farmers and
ranchers who participate in self- funded research and
promotion programs. We support inclusion of language
in the Committee report urging the U.S. Department of
Agriculture (USDA) to recognize that the research and
promotion programs are funded solely with producer
dollars, and therefore are not agencies of the Federal
government or subject to the Freedom of Information
Act (FOIA).

Each research and promotion program is run by a board
of directors comprised of private citizen farmers,
ranchers and downstream users of their products, and
board employees are not government employees. No
federal or taxpayer dollars are used by the boards; in
fact, the boards reimburse USDA for costs related to
USDA’s oversight responsibilities. All program
information for which USDA provides oversight would
continue to be subject to FOIA
requests. By including the report language, please help
ensure that producer resources are focused on research



and promotion activities.

American Beekeeping Federation AmericanHort
American Mushroom Institute American Soybean
Association Michigan Christmas Tree Association
National Cattlemen’s Beef Association National
Christmas Tree Association

Sincerely,

National Cotton Council
National Milk Producers Federation National Pork
Producers Council National Potato Council
National Watermelon Association United Dairymen of
Arizona United Egg Producers

 



From: Cochran, Catherine - OC
To: Batta, Todd - OSEC
Cc: Reuschel, Trevor - OSEC
Subject: Re: AP: INSIDE WASHINGTON: Ag Groups Seek Exemption From Scrutiny
Date: Tuesday, May 3, 2016 11:27:15 AM

Never mind. Someone read this and thought an additional letter was sent to us. I moved too
quickly without re reading. 

Sent from my iPhone

On May 3, 2016, at 11:25 AM, Batta, Todd - OSEC <Todd.Batta@osec.usda.gov> wrote:

The letter to the hill?  I don’t have a copy, nor do I think we want to ask for a copy from
the hill offices. 
I did a quick check of the mentioned organizations websites and the letter is not
posted. 
 
Todd Batta
Assistant Secretary
Office of Congressional Relations
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Front Desk: 202.720.7095
Direct:  
 

From: Cochran, Catherine - OC 
Sent: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 10:54 AM
To: Reuschel, Trevor - OSEC; Batta, Todd - OSEC
Subject: Fwd: AP: INSIDE WASHINGTON: Ag Groups Seek Exemption From Scrutiny
 
Hey, 
 
Can someone send the letter referenced here? 
 
Thanks! 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Cochran, Catherine - OC" <Catherine.Cochran.1@oc.usda.gov>
Date: May 3, 2016 at 9:56:38 AM EDT
To: "Herrick, Matthew - OC" <Matthew.Herrick@oc.usda.gov>, "Peters,
Joanne - OC" <Joanne.Peters@oc.usda.gov>, "Caron, Hillary - OC"
<Hillary.Caron@oc.usda.gov>
Cc: "Frank, Rebecca - OC" <Rebecca.Frank@oc.usda.gov>, "Mabry, Brian -
OSEC" <Brian.Mabry@oc.usda.gov>, "Brown, Adriane - OC"
<Adriane.Brown@oc.usda.gov>, "Addie, Yewande - OC"

(b) (6)



<Yewande.Addie@oc.usda.gov>, "McCarron, Jessica - OC"
<Jessica.McCarron@oc.usda.gov>
Subject: AP: INSIDE WASHINGTON: Ag Groups Seek Exemption From
Scrutiny

INSIDE WASHINGTON: Ag Groups Seek Exemption From Scrutiny
 

<!--[if !supportLists]-->·        <!--[endif]-->BY CANDICE CHOI AND MARY
CLARE JALONICK, ASSOCIATED PRESS
 
NEW YORK — May 2, 2016, 3:14 PM ET
 
Congress is pushing the Agriculture Department to exempt the
groups behind promotional campaigns like "Incredible, Edible Egg"
and "Pork, the Other White Meat" from public scrutiny of their
internal operations despite recent controversy.

The push comes after organizations representing eggs, pork,
potatoes and even Christmas trees pressed for an exception from the
federal Freedom of Information Act for programs that promote
agricultural products. A provision supporting their push was part of
spending legislation approved by a House panel last month.

The familiar campaigns are overseen by USDA but paid for by the
industries that vote to organize them. In a non-binding report
accompanying the agriculture spending bill, the House
Appropriations Committee urged USDA to recognize that the
campaigns are "not agencies of the federal government" and
therefore should not be subject to information requests required by
federal FOIA laws.

The move comes after some so-called "checkoff" programs have
been dogged by controversy. Last year, The Associated Press
reported that the American Egg Board tried to stop the sale of an
eggless mayonnaise alternative at Whole Foods, based on documents
obtained through a public records request.

The head of the egg board subsequently stepped down and the USDA
launched an investigation into the board's activities, saying it does
not condone "efforts to limit competing products in commerce."

On April 11, a group of 14 trade associations sent a letter to Rep.
Robert Aderholt, R-Ala., chairman of the House Appropriations



agriculture subcommittee, and Rep. Sam Farr, D-Calif., the
subcommittee's top Democrat, asking them to urge USDA to
recognize that the promotional programs are not subject to public
records requests.

The rationale was that the programs are funded by producers,
according to a copy of a letter obtained by the AP.

The House Appropriations Committee approved the legislation on
April 19, including the report language urging USDA to recognize the
programs are not subject to FOIA. Congress often uses such non-
binding directions to put a department on notice that lawmakers will
push back if officials ignore them.

A spokeswoman for Rep. Hal Rogers, R-Ky., chairman of the House
Appropriations Committee, said Monday that the panel has no
comment.

The industry associations that signed a letter seeking FOIA exemption
include the American Mushroom Institute, the National Potato
Council, the National Christmas Tree Association, the National
Watermelon Association and the United Egg Producers.

The letter was not signed by the checkoff programs themselves, such
as the American Egg Board and the U.S. Potato Board, which are not
supposed to engage in lobbying.

"The American Egg Board had no role or involvement in the request
by trade organizations for an exemption to the Freedom of
Information Act," wrote Kevin Burkum, an egg board representative.

Details of the letter were first reported last week by Capital Press.

The push underscores the gray area occupied by the checkoff
programs, which have operated with little oversight.

The checkoff programs were established by the government at the
industry's urging as a way to collect mandatory fees from producers
for promotional efforts. That has resulted in considerable marketing
muscle for agricultural products. Last year, the egg board had
revenue of more than $22 million; the pork board's revenue topped
$98 million in 2014.



The catch is that these programs are subject to government oversight
to ensure they stick to generic promotion, and avoid lobbying that
some producers might not agree with.

Still, the programs' activities have been challenged in court. In 2008,
a judge barred the egg board from spending money to campaign on a
proposition in California. In 2012, the Humane Society sued the USDA
over allegations that the National Pork Board cut a deal to improperly
funnel money to a pork industry association that lobbies lawmakers,
a case that remains unresolved.
In 2012, USDA's inspector general issued a report saying
departmental oversight should be improved. Specifically, the audit
said USDA should better detect the misuse of board checkoff funds
and gather more information from the boards to assess their
activities. The report cited examples of improper employee bonuses
and travel expenses.

Chase Adams, a spokesman for the National Cattlemen's Beef
Association, said he did not know if public records requests with the
checkoff program have been increasing but said it is an issue "we've
been cognizant of."

Adams said the associations believe the money that producers
contribute to the checkoff programs is intended for research and
promotion, not carrying out FOIA requests.

"It's really pretty cut and dry," Adams said.

Not everyone agrees.

Matthew Penzer, special counsel to the Humane Society, says the
groups are "trying to have it both ways" by saying the boards should
not be subject to records laws, even though they rely on government
authority for the mandatory collection of fees.

"The only thing that makes them constitutional is that they're
government programs," Penzer said.

Penzer pointed to a Supreme Court decision in 2005 that upheld the
boards' collection of fees from producers as being protected as
"government speech."



———

 
 
Catherine Cochran
Press Secretary
U.S. Dept. of Agriculture
202.720.6959 (o)

(m)
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